< mq?)‘;??'-fﬁwm

ASSISTANT SECRETARY OF DEFENSE
WASHINGTON,D.C. 20901 J

14 MAR 1973 Woy,

In reply refer to:
1-21603/73

SECURITY APFAMS Office of the Secretary of Defense

Chief, RDD, ESD, WHS

MEMORANDUM FOR THE SECRETARY OF DEFENSE Date: Authority: EO 13526+§ 0.S.c.
Declassify: . Deny in Full:
SUBJECT: MBFR Questions Dcclamfy inPart_______ 551

MDR._1%_M- 1990 _
This memorandum responds to your questions (Tab A) on my recent MBFR
memo. I have grouped them under the headings of the 1ssues they raise.

I. Timiniind Charsacter of MBFR Decigions

Question 3 (Tab A) asked if it was not premature for the USG to
table a specific ‘option now as & preferred negotiating position. Thie
poses the question of whet the USG should send to NATO in April and when
we and KATO need to settle on an egreed initiel negotiating positiom,

As I noted ln my earlier memo, the NSC effort ls now aiming at
sending NATO in April:

-~ The broad approach the USG proposes to take on MEFR;

-- Bome of the six MBFR options now bei:ig worked up, together
with accampenying auelyses;

-~ An jvdicetion of which of these options the USG would support,
consistent with our broad approach, as the framework for
development of a camon Allied negotieting position.

Looking beyond April, our target in the June NATO Miniaterial would
be Alliance agreement on a broad approach and on the option or options to
be further developed here and in NATO between June and the opeting of

&W\, negotiations in late September-early October.
~
? / A 15 March Verification Panel meeting 1e scheduled to review the six
.-+l optidns iIn play, and to address the lssues of:
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There will be a second Verii’icatiog Panel meeting aebout the first of
April to review, inter alia, the results of the options analyses, followed
a week or 8o later by an NSC meeting which will decide what we send to
RATO at mid-month.

Agaiunst this background, I agree that it would be premature to teble

an ion now with all the specifics and numbers nailed down. But I
gfg:ly feel that we must table in NATO in April the essential framework

an option with the understending. that specifics and numbers are to be
developed and decided later. This is precisely what Qpticn:A now is,
gince such elements as the exact numerical limite of constraints or the
specific units or manpower to be withdrevm are illustrative and for the
purposes of analysis, .

It is, in my view, essential to table such ean option in April because
without it we risk a coutinued and ever more severe worsening of our
. relations with the Allles, and entering negotiations in the autum
. 111-prepared and divided. . :

We now have an Alliance problem on MBFR which, if it continues,

would not only meke & ghambles of MEFR, but also damage the basic
cohesion of the Alliance. The Allies are suspicious, to say the least,
of our objectives on MEFR and fear that we may work bilaterally with the
Soviets for a quick and sizeable "cuf and run" reduction that Will te-
stabilize the political and military situation in Europe. It is these
suspicions and fears which have made Vienna a difficult and divieive
enterprize. The UB is in good part to blame for this state of affairs,
for we heve not told them our MBFR position despite their persistent
demands -- and desplté our parsiBtent efTtPts in DD over the last 18
months. No amount of general reassurances -~ such es Secretaries Rogers .
and Laird offered at the December NATO Ministeriel -- will ease the Allied
problem. The only way this can be done is by presenting them in April a

ition which will indicate clearly that the US w: ise MBFR &87a
vehicle : ‘ ' _&pd the inatrument for developing a
whole new military (and political) relationship with the Soviets in Eurcpe.

Sending them only our broad approach (together with sn array of
options and analyses) might have doné much to reessure the Allies and
pull the Alliance together last September when Secretery Laird proposed
thie to the President But for the present situation it is, in my view,
too 1ittle, too late. What the Allles waut, expect, and need fram us in
April is -no'i; Just our broad epproach, but at least the framework of an
initial negotiating position that they can come to grips with. Sending
them just our broad approach end an array of cptions will smack to them
of past UBS efforts to give them as little ae possible. Moreover, if in
fact the broad approach is the ome I understand you are prepared to
endorseg, then we will effectively bave alsc endorsed Option A since it
1s the only option emong the 8ix now in play counsistent with this approach.
This can only confuse the Allies further. And not to send them any optiona
and analyses -- which we committed ourselves to do months ago -- would be

extremely dsmaging.
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The capital point in all of this 1s to proceed in a manner that will
bring the Alliance into negotiations in the sutumn fully prepered and
united. The Allies entered CSCE in this manner, because they had for
many months grappled together with a common framewcrk of negotiating
positions. "We have lacked this tlms far in MBFR, and we need to set
about it immedistely. We need to stert now becsuse it will take all
the time we cen get to reach agreement by October on the essemtial
elements on.an Allied negotiating position, given the complexities
involved and Allied ‘differences. Unless we do so, we will enter nego-
tiations without a unified position and without.a clear .understanding
of each other's views on the principal questions. We have peid heavily
for this in Vienna: we would pey far more heavlily in the sutumn.

For the paat 18 months DOD has led the effort to get the US to
decide its MBFR position and tranemit it to the Allies, It has been
tough going in the face of the apparent desire of many in Washington
to keep all options open. But DOD pressure has been a central element
in getting us the decisions we have and pushing us to the decision point
now before uas. If DOD now easas up on the pressure, I am afraid thet we
will stop dead in the water, or proceed at a pace inconsistent with the
situation we now face. :

II. Fa]lbnck

Question 2 asks what we fallback to from the iritial position
sketched 1n.Option A. Optilon A was designed to meet three criteria:

"

-= to point us toward an outcome consistent wlth our broad epproach;

~~ to provide us trading-room, following the principle that one
: neVér\‘enda where one begins in any negotietion;

-~ to give us, at the same time, an initial position with a sufficient
logic and rationale to permit us to make a presentable case for it
to our Allies &s well as to the East.

A

¥What we need to settle on first of all -- in Washington and Brussela --
is a defensitTe going in position consistent with our basic approech -- and
Option A fully meets this. With this in hand, we cen then focus on the
essential task of establishing the limits of what NATO can sfford to glve
up and the bounds of a minimal acceptable outcome for a first-phsae MBFR,
and beyond.
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We have tried repeatedly to get Washington to addrees this: without
it we and NATO will risk being driven by the negotiating procesa toward
blind outcomes to our disadvantage. And, as I described in my briefing
and recent memo, we have explicitly stated that a msnegeable minimal ac-
ceptable outcame for a first-phase MBFR should include, loter alia:

-- an equal 10% stationed ground force reduction, combined with,
-- constraints on force movements and maneuvers into the area.

But Washington -- and principelly the White House -- have regarded any
effort to establish limits and outcomes elther as a threat to flexibdility,
or as impossible to do short of the negotiating situation itself.

As a major part of its work program beyond April, the Tesk Force will
examine limits and outcomes for the cption or options we and NATO decide

to develop. This will be focused on a report for you which could be the
basis for a further effort to get Washington (and subsequently Brussels)
to came to grips with the problem.

ITI. Status of Option A

Questions 1 and 5 (Tab A) touch on the status of Option A within DOD,
Option A was designed and developed principally by the Task Force in col-
laboration with O8D/SA (and scme State participation), and Gardiner Tucker
agrees with it es a going-in position® It was discussed with the OJCS
MEFR people before its transmission to the VPWG, and parts of it (for

example, the air stabilizing limitations) were expressly adjusted to take

account of OJCS viewa. Moreover, I believe the JCS generally agree with
the broad approach that underlies Option A, end that they will support it.
However, the JC3 heve not yet formally indicated their preferred framework

option aud clearly prefer postponing doing so -- until the early April NSC
meeting.

gu,estion asks 1f you should be camnitted to a specific option without

having seen the range of options in detail. As I noted above, of the six
options in play, only Option A is consistent with the broead approsch I
sketched in my MBFR briefing ‘and recent memo, and in particular with the
initial focus on small (for NATO) statlioned ground forces reductions:

~-- Option B is a cammon ceiling on tanks and aircraft and also
includes indigeneous forces.

~- Option C is a mixed package which includes nuclear systems and
aircraft.

Tk K, o qel- e gowhen ™ NATO.
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Option D is an asymmetrical ground and aircraft reduction.

Option E is a camon ceiling including ind:l.genoua forces and
nuclear warheads.

Option F proposes gg US-USSR synnetrical ground personnel
reductions.

We will almost certainly want to adjust Option A further as we move
ghead -- and as I saeid above, we will have smple room and opportunity to
do so, I am, for example, ever more convinced that inclusion of indigenous

forces at any st is unwise and inconsistent with our longer term
Buropean osgective v e

IN. Canclu.siou

With this said, while I persomally believe it the best course, it
is not essential that you endorse Option A mow. But I do think it importaut
that You indicate to Henry Risfinger and Secretary Rogers your views on how
to proceed from here, the broad approsch you believe we should teke, and
the need to advénce a framework option consistent with this approach. I
also think it would Pe useful for you to seek SBecretary Rogers' collabora-
tion in reaching Btate-Defense agreement on these dimensions.

Recamnendation: That you sign the attached memorandum to Henry Kissingsr

and letter to Secretery Rogers.
&:euce 8. S;%ger (

Acting Assistant Secretary
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